
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

JUNE 17, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Pastor Jerry Hewett / Bay Community Church 

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / June 3, 2013 

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / June 10, 2013 

                                                   

 

 PROCLAMATION:    Appreciation for Mrs. Kim Briley 

                                            

 PUBLIC HEARING:    Rezoning:  Earth Inc. 

 

        Location:       Southwest of the intersection of Park Drive and Tallent Lane, east of the   

                                                Daphne Sports Complex 

        Present Zoning:  R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

       Requested Zoning: R6 (G), Garden or Patio Homes  

        Recommendation: Motion Failed to set forth an unfavorable recommendation which is  

                              No recommendation 

  

MOTION:  Appointing Sign Provision Committee 

 

MOTION:  Set Dates for Strategic Planning Meetings 

                                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

        Review minutes / June 10
th

  

1.)  Ordinances: 

a.) Appropriation of Funds:  2012 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) / Ordinance 2013-34 

 

2.    Resolutions:  

       a.)   Bid Award: 2013-N-Truck Chassis and Knuckleboom Loader / / Gulf City Body & Trailer  

              Works  /   Resolution 2013-34 

 

               b.) Bid Award: 2013-O-Pine Straw / John Deere Landscapes / Resolution 2013-35 

 

       3.     Financial Reports:  
               a.)  Treasurers Report / May 31, 2013 

               b.)  Sales & Use Tax Collections / April 30, 2013 

               d.)  Lodging Tax Report / April 30, 2013 

               e.)  Summary Report:  Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance / April 30, 2013 

  

  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis            

 C.   PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell  

       Review minutes / June 12
th

  

  
 

 

1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             JUNE 17, 2013                               PAGE   2 

 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry    

        Review minutes / June 12
th

  

 

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune       

       Review minutes / May 20, 2013 

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

        Review minutes / May 2
nd

  

 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority - Conaway 

  C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 

  E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

Set a Public Hearing date for July 15, 2013 and approve advertising to consider the following: 

 

1.  Rezoning:     John & Deborah Kim   

          Location:       Southwest of the intersection of Pollard Road and County Road 64 

          Present Zoning: R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District  

        Requested Zoning: B-3, Professional Business District  

            Recommendation: Unanimous Unfavorable 

 

     2.    Rezoning:     Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC   

         Location:       Northwest of the intersection of   

     TimberCreek Subdivision and Interstate 10 

           Present Zoning: B-2, General Business District  

      Requested Zoning: R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Homes  

           Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable  

 

 

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune          

  G. Utility Board - Fry   

         

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

          a.)  ABC License / LA Rosso / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On  

                                         or Off Premises) / Transfer of License from Benedetto’s 

 

          b.)  MOTION:   Authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with Ecumenical Ministries for $1,000 

     

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

   C.   Department Head Comments 

        City Clerk Report:   

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

2



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             JUNE 17, 2013                               PAGE   3 

 

 

   

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Bid Award: Truck Chassis and Knuckleboom Loader / 

       Gulf City Body & Trailer Works. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-34 

 

b.)   Bid Award: Pine Straw / John Deere Landscapes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-35 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

      

FOR RECONSIDERATIO N: 

 

Annexation: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-27 

 

 

 

        2
ND

  READ      

 a.)     Appropriation of Funds: Williams Property Acquisition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-32 

       

 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Daphne High School Band. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-33 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds: 2012 Assistance to Firefighters Grant. . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-34 

 

d.)    Fiscal 2013 Amended Budget: New Personnel and Personnel 

         Restructuring. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-35 

 

e.)     Bicyclist Safety. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-36 

 

       

 

 

9.   COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

4



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGAINCE: 

Mr. Willie Robison gave the invocation. 

3.    COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, III. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross arrived at 7:15 p.m.; Kyle Navarro, 

Attorney; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Ashley Campbell, 

Environmental Programs Manager; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Tomasina Werner, Beautification 

Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Joe Lemoine, 

Planning Commission; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation. 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  Update from Baldwin County Commission / Bob James / Tucker Dorsey /   

                                   David Brewer, Administrator / David Pimperl GIS / Mitchell Sims, EMA  

                                   Cal Market, Engineer / Matt Brown, MPO 

 

Commissioners Tucker Dorsey and Bob James made introductory comments and introduced 

David Brewer, Commission Administrator.  . 

 

David Brewer, Commission Administrator, alerted everyone how they can get information 

regarding the how the county operates and how it is governed from the county website. 

 

David Pimperl, GIS Director, spoke to council about connecting and using the county’s GIS 

technology by accessing topographies, pictomerty and that all these were available on the 

Revenue Commissioners website. 

 

Cal Market, County Engineer, discussed the roads and bridges in Baldwin County, and that they 

are being aggressive in improving them.  He mention different projects they are working on such 

as the ATRIP projects one of which is the County Road 13 and County Road 64 Round-About. 

 

Matthew Brown, Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Administrator, explained what 

the MPO is and what it does. 

 

5



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e2
 

Mitchell Sims, Emergency Management Agency Director, reported on EMA plans and training. 

 

Councilman Lake asked about the fiber optics agreement with the county. 

 

David Pimperl said they are ready to hook up, but are waiting on the city to run fiber.                         

  

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

May 20, 2013 Council meeting minutes  

 

Councilman Lake amended the minutes to reflect that he was attending the Alabama League of 

Municipalities Convention at the last council meeting. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adopt the minutes as amended.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Fry, LeJeune, Davis, Scott                NAY    NONE OPPOSED                             

                     ABSTAINED    Lake                                 MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:     Public Indecency Ordinance 

 

Councilman Fry gave the presentation, and said that the Ordinance Committee felt it was in the 

best interest to get the thoughts of citizens regarding the ordinance.  The ordinance will be 

discussed at the work session on June 10
th

.  

 

Council President Scott opened the Public Hearing at 7:06 p.m. 

 

Ms. Lynn Williams - 6403 Captains Lane – (Lucy’s Love Shop) – spoke favorably on Lucy’s 

Love shop opening.  She does not feel they come under the heading of Adult Novelty. 

 

Mr. Steve Barfield – 11750 Halcyon Loop – spoke favorably for Lucy’s Lover Shop. 

 

Council President Scott closed the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that the Mayor has some changes to the ordinance that he will bring to the 

work session. 

 

 

 

 

6



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e3
 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be June 10
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room. 
 
      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The minutes for the May 6
th

 meeting are in the packet. The committee met before the council 

meeting, and there will be a report at the next meeting. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be June 12
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be June 12
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be June 17
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be June 6
th

 at 6:00 p.m., and there are two (2) nominations for 2
nd 

Alternate to consider. 

 

Councilman Rudicell nominated Ms. Lynn Mitchell for the 2
nd

 Alternate position. 

Councilwoman Conaway nominated Mr. Thomas Warner, III for the 2
nd

 Alternate position. 

 

VOTE FOR  MS. LYNN MITCHELL 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Conaway  Nay    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Nay    Scott   Nay 

Fry   Nay 

 

AYE    Rudicell, LeJeune                             NAY    Conaway, Lake, Fry, Davis, Scott 

 

                                                             MOTION FAILED 
 

 

 

7



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e4
 

VOTE FOR MR. THOMAS WARNER, III 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye     

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

Mr. Thomas Warner, III is the 2
nd

 Alternate for the BZA. 

 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the May 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet.  The members have recommended 

appointing Mrs. Debbie Strahley to the DRA. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway appoint Mrs. Debbie Strahley to the Downtown 

Redevelopment Authority.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be June 27
th

 at 6:00 p.m.  They will be discussing the charter and by-laws 

to make sure they meet the latest information by State Code. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be June 13
th

 at 4:00 p.m. at the Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes for the May 2
nd

 special called meeting are in the packet. There is a special called 

meeting scheduled for June 11
th

.  The new appointed member is Hudson Sandefur. 

  

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be June 12
th

 at 6:30 p.m. at the Recreation Center.  There is a board 

position open, and submissions can be sent to David McKelroy of Councilman LeJeune. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be June 26
th

 at 5:00 p.m.  There is an expiring board member that needs 

reappointing. 

8



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to re-appoint Mr. Bob Segalla to the Utility Board / term to 

expire June 2019.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

            See report below 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported Phase II of the Lake Forest project 

contract will end in June, and should be completed by the middle of July. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – reported that there are four (4) positions open. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported they were notified Friday that they are to be awarded 

another AFG grant from FEMA in the amount of $83,250.  This brings the total to over $104,000 

in the past three (3) weeks. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported that Art in the Park is Thursday from 10:00 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. for children 12 years old and younger.  He reported on the 14
th

 Dixie Youth All 

Star Tournament and other baseball games. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported they have replaced two (2) officers, and hired the two 

(2) officers council approved.  

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes –  
No report. 

 

City Attorney Report: 

Mr. Ross asked council to adjourn into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to discuss 

pending litigation.  The will be no action required by council. 

 

 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mr. Bob Segalla – Creekside Subdivision – thanked council for his reappointment to the Utility 

Board, and their vote of confidence. 

9



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell – Daphne -  alerted everyone to major changes of policy with FEMA.  If 

there is a disaster FEMA will not cover any damages if people have insurance until the insurance 

company denies coverage. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of Eastern Shore Motel – spoke regarding the proposed 

contribution to the Mobile National Estuary Program as a waste of money. 

 

Mrs. Holly LeJeune – Lake Forest – spoke regarding the annexation of the Retreat at Tiawasee 

as being opposed to the ingress and egress of the proposed subdivision. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 
       

    2
ND

  READ 
a.)   Annexation:  GCOF  Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-27 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Mobile Bay National Estuary 

        Program Community Contribution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-29 

 

c.)    Regulating Solicitation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-30 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-27.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

Councilman Scott asked Mrs. Jones to read her response to a question asked by a 

newspaper reporter. 

 

Mrs. Jones reply is attached to these minutes. 

 

 

10



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e7
 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Ordinance 2013-27.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Nay    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Nay    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Nay 

 

ALL INFAVOR    Rudicell, LeJeune, Scott            NAY    Conaway, Lake, Fry, Davis 

 

                                                          MOTION FAILED 
 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-29.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2013-29.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to table Ordinance 2013-29.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 
 

AYE   Rudicell                                   NAY    Conaway, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Davis, Scott 

 

                                                  MOTION FAILED 

 
VOTE ON ORIGINAL MAIN MOTION 
 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Davis, Scott          NAY    LeJeune 

 

                                                   MOTION CARRIED 

 

11



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e8
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-30.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-30.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR           NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to postpone the first read for Ordinance 2013-31 the 

Public Indecency ordinance. Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2013-32  IS 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilman Lake said that Mrs. Briley is retiring, and he would like an audit to be done to 

protect the city and Mrs. Briley, and whoever comes after her will start with a clean slate.  He 

will bring it up at the Finance meeting. 

Councilman Davis said that it is good business to have audits. He thinks it will be important to 

the person that comes in to have that information.  He likes the investment that the city has made 

with the Chamber of Commerce.  He thinks the city need to be part of the Eastern Shore, and the 

fact that Daphne, Spanish Fort and Fairhope can work together makes a lot of sense. 

Council President Scott said that the Mayor is responsible for selecting the auditing firm. 

Council can decide to appropriate funds to hire another auditor, but the auditing firm, according 

to state code, is selected by the Mayor..  He thanked the Commissioners and staff for the 

presentation. 

12



JUNE 3, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e9
 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending 

litigation.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

The City Attorney certified the forgoing reason is acceptable according to the Open 

Meetings Act, and should last  about five (5) minutes. 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

 8:20 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

         

                                                     

__________________________________    

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk       

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer,    

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Ron Scott, Council President      

13



Submitted for the record at the June 3, 2013 Council Meeting

114



Submitted for the record at the June 3, 2013 Council Meeting

215



Submitted for the record at the June 3, 2013 Council Meeting

316



Submitted for the record at the June 3, 2013 Council Meeting

417



JUNE 10, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

  

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant city 

Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director 

of Community Development; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Willie Robison, BZA;  

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 

 

The City Clerk, Rebecca Hayes, introduced the new Assistant City Clerk, Sarah Toulson to 

everyone. 

 

1. CREATE NEW POSITION: 

Mayor Haygood discussed with council creating a new position combining marketing, 

communications, grant writer, IT and in the future city administrator.  He said they need to be 

proactive with communications with citizens.  Mrs. Hinman is writing a job description for the 

position. 

 

Council discussed the proposal, and Councilman LeJeune asked if this person would be available to 

other departments, and Mayor Haygood said that the position would be a city wide resource.  

 

2. SET DATE & TIME FOR STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE WORK 

Council discussed different days and times for the planning session. 

 

Consensus of Council was to meet the second and fourth Monday’s at 4:30 p.m. in the council 

chambers. The second Monday will have to be after the Finance Committee meeting around 5:00 

p.m. 

 

Council President Scott asked the City Clerk to put this on the agenda for a vote on Monday’s 

agenda. 

 

3. PUBLIC INDECENCY ORDINANCE 

Kyle Navarro gave a genesis of the ordinance.  The goal is to regulate the negative impact from 

these types of establishments.  He mentioned the Mayor wanted to separate the ordinance into 1.) 

Public Indecency   2.)  Adult Entertainment.  There is not a problem with breaking out tattoo parlors. 

 

Council discussed changing the buffer requirements. 

 

Mayor Haygood said that there are problems with the definitions, and they need to make sure they 

are defining things properly, and to scrutinize everything and  consider the impact.  Also, they need 

to consider the enforcement, and how to make a determination, and when to apply for a business 

license. 

 

 

18



JUNE 10, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

Consensus of Council is to consider the ordinance at the Ordinance Committee meeting on 

Wednesday to  consider: 

 

a.) Separate Tattoo Parlors / Put restrictions 

b.) Do not put under Adult Novelty 

c.) 500 feet / Compromise 

d.) Take out percentage / If they sale Adult Novelty they are under Adult Novelty 

e.) Schools, churches, daycares need a greater distance than 500 feet 

 

4.  DEBT REDUCTION / RESERVES 

Councilman Rudicell stated there is no direction on spending money.  They need to have a formula 

to go by.  He feels that spending should be matched in debt reduction to build up the reserves.  

Council should apply discipline on spending and saving.  He would like to continue to look at this 

issue. 

 

Council discussed the need for a policy for community contributions 

 

Council President Scott asked the City Clerk to research other cities to see how they handle 

community contributions.  

 

5. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

a.)  Sign Committee List 

Council President Scott said appointment of the committee will be on the agenda Monday.  

 

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President   

19



20



 

PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 17, 2013 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 

        Rezoning:     Earth, Inc. 

 

        Location:       Southwest of the intersection of    

  Park Drive and Tallent Lane, east 

of the Daphne Sports Complex 

 

        Present Zoning:  R-3, High Density Single Family   

                                             Residential District 

 

       Requested Zoning: R6 (G) , Garden or Patio Homes  

 

        Recommendation: Motion Failed to set forth an   

                                            unfavorable recommendation  

                               which is No recommendation 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

36



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
  June 10, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at   4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Tommie Conaway, 
Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Joe Davis, Councilman John Lake,  Finance Director Kim Briley, 
Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta,  Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting 
Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Representative Sherree Hilburn, Public Works Director 
Richard Johnson, FD Chief White, Recreation Dept. Director David McKelroy and Civic Center 
Director Margaret Thigpen.         . 
 
 
II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
A.  Daphne High School Band – Appropriation requests-$48,025                   
Mr. Jamar Dumas, Band Director for Daphne High School discussed the letter presented by the DHS 
Band requesting the City appropriate funds to help purchase new band instruments and a trailer.  Mr. 
Dumas explained that the DHS Band needs the new instruments to play more advanced literature 
music.  Mr. Fred Small spoke on the need for a new trailer so all equipment could be transported 
together.  Councilman John Lake asked about scholarships that may be not received due to the band 
not having the instruments needed.  Mr. Dumas discussed a very high percentage of band students 
receive scholarships so this equipment is important for the band.  Councilman Ron Scott spoke on the 
importance of schools and recommended the Mayor and the Finance Director work together to give 
direction for what type of appropriation/financial assistance that could be given for this request.  
Chairperson Mrs. Conaway discussed the schools in Daphne will soon be coming to the City to 
request funds.  The Mayor discussed an allotment in conjunction with a loan and funding from the 
TASTE (Taste of the Eastern Shore) function.   
 
Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to recommend a funding and loan option to be 
worked out between the Mayor and Finance Director.  Seconded by Councilman John 
Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
B.   New Assistant City Clerk – Sarah Toulson 
Mrs. Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk introduced the new assistant City Clerk, Sarah Toulson. 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
Human Resource Representative Sherree Hilburn reviewed the Human Resource Report including open 
position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Fire Fighter (2)      Pre-employment/background 

Police Officer (4)     Date of Hire: 6/13/2013 

Children’s Librarian     Date of Hire: 5/30/2013  

Accounting Technician     (Interviews completed 5/08/13) 

Court Magistrate     Posting ends: 6/12/2013 

Mechanic      Posting ends: 6/14/2013 

PSW (Streets)      Posting ends: 6/14/2013 

37



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

Finance Director     Posting ends: 6/18/2013 

Revenue Officer     Open 6/05/13 (Pending Advertisement) 

Asst. City Clerk      Date of Hire: 6/6/13 

 

Safety Committee Meeting: No meeting in May due to holiday week. 

 

Other Human Resources’ projects or meetings:   

 

Oral Board Interviews for Fire Fighter candidates May 30 and 31 

Asst. City Clerk interviews – May 14-25 

HR Director attending Southern region IPMA-HR conference June 8-12 
 
Mrs. Hilburn reviewed the open positions and noted that the Accounting Technician and the Revenue 
Officer positions will remain open per the Mayor pending the hiring of the new Finance Director.   
 
Mrs. Briley emphasized the need to move forward quickly with the hiring of the Finance Director.  Mrs. 
Briley noted that when she was out on leave for six months last year that the financials and several of 
her other duties were not done when she returned.  Mrs. Briley emphasized the need to stay current 
on financial reporting.  Mrs. Briley discussed that it would be better for a new person to come in while 
the financials are up to date. 
 
Mrs. Henson asked when the Revenue Officer position would be advertised.  Discussion continued on 
the two positions: Accounting Technician and Revenue Officer waiting to be filled after the Finance 
Director is hired.  Mrs. Henson asked if the Revenue Officer position could go ahead and be 
advertised so that the applications would be available upon the hiring of a new Finance Director in 
order to reduce the time the Revenue position would be vacant.  The Mayor agreed to go ahead and 
advertise the position. 
 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  May 31, 2013 

The DRAFT ONLY Treasurer’s Report totaling $17,885,283.37 was presented by Mrs. Henson.  Mrs. 
Henson noted the draft numbers are directly from the Bank Statements.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. 
Manning, Accounting Technician had retired but had agreed to come back part time for a limited 
amount of time to train her replacement.  Mrs. Henson noted that since the hiring of the new 
employee is pending that Mrs. Manning is trying to get all the cash receipts entered so that the final 
Treasurer’s Report and other financial statement can be prepared.  (Mrs. Manning is only working 
part-time so a longer timeframe is necessary to get everything entered and reconciled).  Mrs. Henson 
noted that the financial information for Treasurer’s Report and Sales and Lodging Tax collections will 
be included in the Council packet if all is entered and reconciled prior to the deadline to submit for the 
packet.                  .   
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: April 30, 2013 
DRAFT amount for April’s Collections is:  $1,039,770 

 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, April 30, 2013  

            DRAFT amount for April’s Collections is:  $47,435 
 

4. Summary Statement:  Revenues & Expenditures w/comparatives, April 30, 2013                       
Finance Director Mrs. Briley stated the statement is not ready yet but should be ready for the Council    
meeting.  

 

38



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

5. Report: New Business Licenses – May 31, 2013     
     Mrs. Conaway noted that Popeye’s opened today. 
  

6.  Bills Paid Reports – May 31,  2013 
       The Bills Paid Report was presented. 
 
A. Appropriation Request:  (Ordinance)  

 
1. Marketing/Communications/Technical Writing position-requested by Mayor Haygood-

$45,000/yr + benefits (Total Salary & FY13 pro-rated amount will be a HANDOUT) 
 
Mayor  Haygood discussed the need for  three new positions at the City:  
Marketing/Communications/Technical-Grant Writer… Director, IT Director and a City Manager.  
 
Mayor Haygood noted he was waiting on supporting documentation from Archer for the job 
description and recommended salary range.  Mayor Haygood discussed that during the 
process of interviewing for the Assistant City Clerk position there were a couple of applicants 
that possessed these skills.  Mayor Haygood noted that one individual that was a finalist for 
the Assistant City Clerk position was both strong in communication and marketing and 
possessed good leadership skills as well.   Mayor Haygood noted he thought their salary 
requirements were in the $42,000-$45,000 range but he would be waiting to obtain a mapping 
of pay grade from Archer.  Job functions would include taking on website administration and 
training department heads as well as improving communication to Council and preparing news 
releases, and grant writing.  Mayor Haygood noted Mr. Scott had also interviewed the 
candidates. 
 
Councilman Scott agreed on the candidates having an incredible skillset and emphasized the 
need to have someone to communicate with the citizens.  Mr. Scott stated there is a need for 
this position and hopefully will receive some good applicants.  Councilman John Lake 
discussed he felt there should be more consideration given to addressing the City needs such 
as more ball parks, tennis courts and swimming pools before hiring more personnel.  
Councilman Lake stated we need to leverage current employee skills.   
 
Mayor Haygood agreed recreational needs are important. Mayor Haygood noted he has been 
working on obtaining all the City’s digital files for the City logo and noted that all departments 
are using different printers.  Mayor Haygood stated the City needs help with a skillset for 
editing photos to put on the City’s webpage.  Mayor Haygood noted the City is paying $1,600 
labor/consulting for the website.  Mayor sees the positions he is requesting falling within the 
salary range of $60,000-$70,000.  Mayor noted he is fiscally conservative and that he has 
taken on his back the issue of internet connectivity project and he noted that prior Council had 
approved $66,000/year for a fiber connection ($4,503/month-45MB / $9,000 installation)  but 
he is working to save monies by working solely on using a  wireless connection 
($1,200/month-20MB) at all locations with DSL backup.  The Mayor noted he is still working on 
some infrastructure things with the internet connectivity but continuing to work to save the City 
money. 
 
Councilman Joe Davis discussed the need for a single voice for the City for internal and 
external communication and he would support this additional position for as long as it is 
needed.  Chairperson Mrs. Conaway noted the position was discussed during the Council 
Retreat and she agrees the position is needed and also agrees that Recreation needs are 
important too.  Councilman Ron Scott recommended if Archer had information available for 
new position it could be presented at 1st Council meeting in July 2013. 
 

2. 2012 AFG Grant – FD - $8,325 Match 
(Turnout Gear purchases will be made off the current bid:  2013-D-FD/TURNOUT GEAR) 

39



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

 Chief White reviewed the AFG Grant and noted the grant is a Federal share 90% with a required City 
match of 10%.  Chief White discussed that turnout gear will be purchased with the grant monies and 
noted that there is a current bid that the turnout gear will be purchased from.  Mayor Haygood 
congratulated Chief White for being awarded the 2012 AFG Grant.   

 

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to adopt an ordinance appropriating $ 8,325 to match 
2013AFG Grant. Seconded by Joe Davis.   Motion carried. 
 
 
B.  BID AWARD (Resolution) 

 
1. 2013-N-TRUCK CHASSIS AND KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER 

Mr. Johnson noted they were very competitive bids.  Mr. Johnson recommends the bid be 
awarded to Gulf City Body & Trailer. 

 

Motion by Councilman John Lake  to adopt a resolution to award the 2013-N-TRUCK 
CHASSIS AND KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER bid to  Gulf City Body & Trailer in the amount 
of $120,500.  Seconded by Councilman Joe Davis.  Motion carried. 

 
2. 2013-O-PINE STRAW  (Negotiated bid and recommendation will be a HANDOUT) 

Discussion was made that there were no bidders so this is a negotiated bid with the vendor the City 
currently purchases pine straw from.  Mr. Johnson recommends the bid be awarded to John Deere 
Landscape @ $4.00 a bale. 
 

Motion by Councilman Joe Davis to adopt a resolution to award the 2013-O-
PINESTRAW   bid as negotiated with John Deere Landscape in the amount of $4.00/per 
bale. Seconded by Councilman John Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
 
 
  
V. OLD BUSINESS 
 A.  CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) 
Mr. Scott discussed the CAFR and all the hard work Mrs. Briley had put into preparing the report.  Mr. 
Scott noted there is a lot of information in the report, it is very informative.  Mr. Lake also discussed all 
the hard work Ms. Briley had put into the report and that she had put all her heart and soul into the 
preparation of the CAFR.  Mr. Lake asked when the award would be announced.  Mrs. Briley noted in 
about four to six months.  Mr. Lake noted he would like for someone to check to see if the City could 
pay for Mrs. Briley to attend the presentation of the award and accept on behalf of the City. 
 
VI. ADJOURN   
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:55p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



Ordinance  Committee Page 1 
 

                                                                                                                                                                DRAFT 
                                                                                   SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

                                                                                                                                                       

            

Ordinance Committee 

Wednesday, June 12, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 
        
Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

       CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 

 Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry, Chairman; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune.                                               

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Captain Scott Taylor, Animal Control 

Officers Rhonda Jones and Linda Matthews; Ms. Lynn Williams Cook; Charles Neese. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  / May 8, 2013 

Councilman Scott asked that the minutes be amended to delete the first sentence under the heading 

Bicycle Ordinance. 

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to approve the May 8, 2013 minutes as amended.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    AL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOPSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Charles Neese, Owner of Royal Street Tattoo Eastern Shore, requested that tattoo 

parlors not be placed under Adult Novelty category. 

 

 

IV.      ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE  

Animal Control Officers Rhonda Jones and Linda Matthews spoke regarding the 

tethering of dogs saying that would be hard to enforce unless you have guidelines of how 

many feet the run wire should be, where should the run and so forth in order for them to 

enforce the ordinance.  They had rather tethering of dogs not be in the ordinance at all, 

but if it is they would like to establish specs so they can enforce the ordinance. They also 

asked that cats be removed from Section 14 A the restraint section. 

 

 

 

88



Ordinance  Committee Page 2 
 

The committee discussed the issue and requested that Kyle get with Animal Control and 

Mrs. Jones to revise the ordinance, and bring it back to the next meeting. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to table the ordinance while Kyle works with 

Animal Control and Mrs. Jones on further revisions. Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL INFAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

V.  BICYCLE ORDINANCE 

The committee discussed whether the ordinance was necessary since it is addressed in the 

state code. They felt this would bring awareness of bicyclist being on the road, and the 

state code does not designate that vehicles must pass within three (3) feet of the cyclist. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to send the Bicycle Safety Ordinance to council 

with a recommendation for adoption.    Seconded by  Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

  

VI. PUBLIC INDECENCY ORDINANCE     

Kyle presented the separated ordinances to the committee.  One is titled Public Indecency 

and the other is Regulating Community Standards.  Kyle said that the Public Indecency 

ordinance deals with nudity, flashers and sexual activity.  The Regulating of Community 

Standards deals with sexually oriented business and tattoo facilities. 

 

The committee discussed Section II of the Community Standards ordinance / sexually 

oriented businesses. The 35% clause has been deleted.  

 

The consensus of the committee is the following recommendations for Section II the 

Community Standards ordinance / Sexually Oriented Businesses : 

 

a. Must be 500 feet from residential 

b. Must be 1,000 feet from all other like businesses 

c. Can go into Commercial-Industrial (C-I) By-Right 

d. Can go into B-2 with Planning Commission approval 

e. Penalty $50 and not to exceed the maximum allowed by state law per 

day 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



Ordinance  Committee Page 3 
 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to recommend the following revisions to Section II 

of “The Regulating of Community Standards” Ordinance / Sexually Oriented 

Businesses and after revisions are made to send ordinance to council for adoption: 

 

  

    a.) Must be 500 feet from residential 

    b.) Must be 1,000 feet from all other like businesses 

    c.) Can go into Commercial-Industrial (C-I) District By-right 

    d.) Can go into B-2, General Business District with Planning Commission  

                      Approval 

    e.) Penalty $50 and not to exceed the maximum allowed by state law per   

                        day 

 

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

The committee discussed Section III of the Community Standards ordinance / tattoo 

facilities.  The committee made the following recommendations for Section II of The 

Community Standards ordinance / Tattoo Parlors: 

 

a.)    Must be 250 feet from Residential  

b.)    Must be 500 feet from all other tattoo facilities 

Buffer applies to churches except those in a commercial building 

c.)    B-2, General Business District By-Right 

d.)    B-1, Local Business District with Planning Commission approval 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to recommend the following revisions to Section 

III of “The Regulating of Community Standards” Ordinance / Tattoo Facilities and 

after revisions are made to send ordinance to council for adoption: 

              

   a.)     Must be 250 feet from Residential  

             b.)     Must be 500 feet from all other tattoo facilities 

                      Buffer applies to churches except those in a commercial building 

             c.)     B-2, General Business District  By-right 

             d.)     B-1, Local Business District with Planning Commission approval             

                              

  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell.                          

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

  

 

 

 

 

VI. BUSINESSE LISCENSE ORDINANCES CONSOLIDATION 

90



Ordinance  Committee Page 4 
 

Kyle is working on combing all the amendments to the business license ordinance and 

will have it for the next meeting. 

 

VII.     OTHER BUSINESS 

Captain Taylor mentioned they may want to consider repealing the texting while driving 

ordinance, because it is in conflict with state law. 

 

 

VIII.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Council LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk, 

Recording Secretary 

91



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE NOTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on May 20, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6      
          

I. CALL TO ORDER 
  

 The May meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:07 PM.  There was not a 

quorum, therefore these notes were taken in place of minutes. 
 

 Present: 
 

 Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Richard D. Johnson-Director Public 

Works, Sandra Cushway-Administrative Assistant Public Works, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne 

Beautification Committee, Randy Davis-Volkert, Doug-HMR Engineers 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report for April 2013 was reviewed.  The number of work orders for street 

light repairs was significantly higher than normal.  Richard reported that periodically the 

police department does a sweep throughout the city and reports back to Public Works all of 

the lights that need to be repaired/replaced.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Reports for April 2013 were reviewed.  Richard noted that 

the engine was replaced in Solid Waste vehicle #1005. 

C. Public Participation – None  

D. Correspondence – None 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from April 20, 2013 Meeting – Due to lack of quorum, minutes will be represented at 

the June 17, 2013 meeting for approval. 

B. Mosquito Report – April reports reviewed.  No comments 

C. Street Sweeper Reports for April 2013 were reviewed.  No comments. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. None  
  

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Street Striping – Richard reported that 9.2 miles of City streets are being striped this week. 

B. Richard reminded the committee that this week is National Public Works Week and that the 

Annual Equipment Expo is going to be held on Wednesday.  He invited the committee 

members to come out and join us.   

C. Work is continuing on the CR64 sidewalk.  The Council needs to authorize the PW Director to 

research the purchase of the additional land to use for parking.  He will be submitting for a 

grant in June. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for April 2013 was reviewed.  No Comments 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for April 2013 was reviewed.  

Tonnage was up almost 2,000 lbs.  So far this year, we are trending upward by almost 30 tons. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for April 2013 was reviewed.  Thirteen (13) new 

residential customers in the City this past month.  So far, almost 100 new residents this fiscal 

year with many more new homes currently under construction.   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes not submitted for April meeting. 

92



 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from May 1, 2013 Meeting were reviewed.   

B. The hotels close to Gator Alley have requested hand-out cards.  Several boards need to be 

replaced. 

C. Need to look at beautifying malfunction Junction.  Need to develop plans. 

D. Dorothy reviewed the Beautification Committee’s Mission Statement. 

E. South bound on Hwy 98 towards Montrose, the Crape Myrtles need to be pruned.  There are 

suckers growing at the base of the trees. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from April 29, 2013 reviewed. 

B. The committee will be making recommended changes to the Council. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR:  Phase II on schedule and budget.  Profit Drive completed.  Lake Forest Phase III in 

June.  D’Olive Creek:  Barges were moved in last week.  Requested that same language be 

used when proposition is taken to the Finance Committee.  It will be 1/3, 1/3 & 1/3 split.  

Hoping to take to June 10, 2013 Finance Committee meeting.  The state is ready and okay 

with the agreement.  Just need approval from the Finance Committee.  Councilman LeJeune 

stated that he would prefer that the request be delayed so that the PW Committee can make a 

motion to send it to the Finance Committee for approval. 

B. Volkert:  Nothing to report. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for June 17, 2013 was announced 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 5:46 PM   

93



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



 

 

SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

 

JULY 15, 2013 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

1. 

 

  Rezoning:     John & Deborah Kim 

   

        Location:       Southwest of the intersection of  

      Pollard Road and County Road 64 

 

        Present Zoning:  R-2, Medium Density Single 

Family Residential District  

 

   Requested Zoning: B-3, Professional Business District  

 

        Recommendation: Unanimous Unfavorable  

 

 

 

 

2. 
         

        Rezoning:     Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC 

   

        Location:       Northwest of the intersection of   

      TimberCreek Subdivision and Interstate 10 

 

        Present Zoning:  B-2, General Business District  

 

   Requested Zoning: R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Homes  

 

        Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable  
 

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 –  

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located Southwest of the Intersection of Pollard 

Road and County Road 64 

John & Deborah Kim 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District to 

B-3, Professional Business District, said property is located Southwest of the intersection of Pollard Road 

and County Road 64 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF 

LOTS 1, 2, AND 3 AUDUBON PARK SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2040-B IN 

THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 30-MINUTES 41-SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 

SAID LOT 1 AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF POLLARD ROAD (80' RIGHT-OF-

WAY) A DISTANCE OF 221.48 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 37-

SECONDS WEST, 79.86 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89-DEGREES 29-MINUTES 

37-SECONDS WEST, 110.42 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 33-

SECONDS EAST, 180.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

COUNTY ROAD NO. 64 (80' RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE RUN NORTH 89-DEGREES 36-

MINUTES 21-SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE 

OF 110.44 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

POLLARD ROAD; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00-DEGREES 31-MINUTES 36-SECONDS WEST 

ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 181.85 FEET TO THE POINT 

OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 0.46 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-2, Medium Density 

Single Family Residential District to B-3, Professional Business District, and that the zoning ordinance and 

zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



ORDINANCE NO. 2013 –  

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Northwest of the Intersection of TimberCreek 

Subdivision and Interstate 10 

Interstate-Baldwin Investment, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from B-2, General Business District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio 

Home District, said property is located Northwest of the intersection of TimberCreek Subdivision and 

Interstate 10 being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 28, T4S R2E , BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA, THENCE RUN N 00° 02' 26" W 1323.41 FEET TO A POINT ON A WESTWARD 

PROJECTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT 

AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 123 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 89° 09' 40" E ALONG SAID PROJECTION LINE 

AND SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, FIRST UNIT, AND 

ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF WILSON HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION, THIRD UNIT, AS PER 

PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 5, PAGE 184 OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 1527.71 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT), AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2056-D 

OF SAID PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN S 20° 51' 

15" W ALONG THE WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED 

PLAT) A DISTANCE OF 296.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON 

DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID WEST TERMINUS OF PERSIMMON DRIVE RUN S 26° 

13' 34" W  60.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID 

PERSIMMON DRIVE, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF 

TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF PERSIMMON DRIVE, RUN S 63° 46' 26" E 20.33 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN 

AS FOLLOWS: S 26° 13' 34" W 150.00 FEET, S 63° 46' 26" E 135.23 FEET, S 12° 39' 

08" W 123.51 FEET, S 23° 27' 51" E 138.95 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING 

ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE ( AMENDED PLAT) AND 

ALONG THE WEST TERMINUS OF PINE RUN, RUN S 15° 43' 34 W 250.00 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID PINE RUN;  THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 

SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) AND ALONG 

SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PINE RUN, RUN S 74° 16' 26" E 41.00 FEET TO A 

POINT ; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERN BOUNDARY LINE OF TIMBERCREEK, PHASE 

NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN S 15° 43' 34" W 222.16 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT); THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERN BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID TIMBERCREEK, PHASE NINE (AMENDED PLAT) RUN AS FOLLOWS: S 78° 27' 

58" E 130.46 FEET, S 83° 59' 10" E 167.69 FEET, S 58° 15' 04" E 308.72 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 50" E 340.74 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID 

NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 240.59 FEET 

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE 

RUN N 08° 26' 50" W ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY 

SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY 

LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE  

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 26' 

50" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A 

DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP 

STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE AFOREMENTIONED NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10; THENCE RUN S 81° 33' 10" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, A DISTANCE OF 1769.26 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 

10 RUN S 81° 31' 27" W 10.41 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AN EXISTING 

SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN N 08° 28' 33" W ALONG THE EAST 
158



BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET 

TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 

81° 31' 27" W ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION 

SITE, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER 

PUMP STATION SITE; THENCE RUN S 08° 28' 33" E ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF 

SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF SAID SANITARY SEWER PUMP STATION SITE, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

AFOREMENTIONED  NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, THENCE RUN 

S 81° 31' 27" W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 10, 

A DISTANCE OF 798.04 FEET TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN; 

THENCE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF A NATURAL DRAIN, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 27° 11' 27" W 

182.77 FEET, N 41° 34' 42" W 146.10 FEET, N 57° 14' 28" W 276.05 FEET, N 30° 58' 

45" W 144.94 FEET, N 48° 54' 33" W 263.34 FEET, N 48° 17' 00" W 273.03 FEET TO A 

POINT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION, AS PER PLAT 

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 116 OF THE AFOREMENTIONED PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF  

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN N 89° 43' 17" E 419.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF SAID SENIOR DOUGLAS SUBDIVISION; THENCE RUN N89° 25' 13" E 1321.85 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 97.4945 ACRES. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 11, 2013 has considered said 

request and set forth an unanimous favorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne 

that said property  be rezoned; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

July 15, 2013 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from B-2, General Business 

District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be 

amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS                   , day of                        2013. 

         

 

                    _______________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

159



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

169



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-34 
 2013-N-TRUCK CHASSIS AND KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the TRUCK 
CHASSIS AND KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the TRUCK CHASSIS AND 
KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER and determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the TRUCK CHASSIS AND 
KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER be awarded to Gulf City Body & Trailer Works, Inc.; 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby  
accept the bid of  Gulf City Body & Trailer Works, Inc. in the amount of $120,500 
as specified in  BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2013-N-TRUCK CHASSIS AND 
KNUCKLEBOOM LOADER. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                             , 2013. 
 
           

 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                     
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

170



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-35 

2013-O-PINE STRAW 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PINE 
STRAW will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, No bids were received and therefore can be negotiated; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the negotiated bid for the PINE STRAW and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the negotiated bid for the PINE STRAW be 
awarded to John Deere Landscapes, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the negotiated bid of John Deere Landscapes, Inc. for unit cost in the 
amount of $4.00/bale as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-O-PINE 
STRAW. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of _                _, 2013. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                                 

171



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-27 

 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

 GCOF  Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

(Located Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Trace Boulevard and County Road 13) 

(31.53 acres) 

 
  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have signed and 

filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, requesting that such property 

be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits or police 

jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory proposed 

to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

on March 28, 2013, and a favorable  recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider said 

request for annexation and said property shall be zoned R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on May 20, 

2013 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is in the 

best interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the corporate limits 

of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 11-42-24, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION. The City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama does by this Ordinance assent to the annexation of the property described in Section 2 of this 

Ordinance to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and does by the adoption of this 

Ordinance, extend and rearrange said corporate limits to embrace and include such property. 

 

 SECTION 2: THE PROPERTY. That property requested to be annexed into the City of Daphne 

is described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance as if fully set out herein. 

 
 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY. The property hereby annexed to the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, is set forth and described in Exhibit "B" and attached hereto a map of the property showing its 

relationship to the corporate limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this 

Ordinance. 

 

 

172



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-27                   GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee                                       PAGE    2 

 

 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION. This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-

21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

 SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.  A description of the property described in this Ordinance 

shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as required by Section 

11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended.  

 

LEGAL: 
“Exhibit A” 

 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 

SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN 

THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, 

REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, PAGE 274; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 

840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' R/W); 

THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 89°32'20" 

EAST, 42.92 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD; THENCE 

RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 FEET 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" EAST, 3490.21 

FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 11°19'19" EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 

796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°10'07" 

EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' R/W); THENCE RUN 

ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  PARCEL CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS, LYING IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____ day of ___________, 2013. 

 

 

           

 

 

                                                                                            ____________________________________                                                               

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

173



174



175



176



177



 
ORDINANCE 2013-32 

 
Appropriation of Funds:  Williams Property Acquisition  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on October 
1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that large amounts of sediment are impacting Yancey Branch, 
Daphne’s beachfront property, and ultimately Mobile Bay; and  
 
WHEREAS, the source of such sediment deposits has been identified as property currently owned 
by Henry C. Williams, Jr; and 
 
WHEREAS,   future remediation of the property to control the flow of sediment into Daphne’s 
beachfront areas and Mobile Bay  will be needed and is estimated to cost $ 50,000;  and  
 
WHEREAS, remediation needs will be evaluated and research will be done for any available 
grant monies for this purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, the acquisition and subsequent remediation of this property will preserve and 
protect the water quality and habitat of Yancey Branch and Mobile Bay, and thereby maintain 
the valuable and limited asset the City of Daphne has in waterfront property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 
the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a General Fund appropriation in the 
amount of $96,000 for 1) the acquisition of the Williams property ($ 92,000); and 2) title search, 
appraisal, taxes, legal and associated cost with closing ($4,000).   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
         
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood,  Mayor 
 
           
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

178



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2013-33 
 
 

DAPHNE HIGH SCHOOL BAND FY 13 APPROPRIATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that a certain appropriation is required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes Daphne High School and the 
importance of its band to the citizens of Daphne. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that $ 35,000 is hereby appropriated to the Baldwin County 
Board of Education for the benefit of the Daphne High School Band with a total of  
$ 25,000 to be withheld from future allocations to the band through the City’s 
annual Taste of Eastern Shore Event with annual withholdings not to exceed  
$ 5,000. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
         
 
                                                                      ________________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor    
 
     
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

179



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
COUNTY OF BALDWIN ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 
THIS COOPERATION AGREEMENT between the City of Daphne, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Alabama (the “City”) and 
the Baldwin County Board of Education, an agency of the State of Alabama (the 
“Board”) made and entered this ______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board is vested with the general administration and supervision 
of the public schools and educational interests of Baldwin County, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health, 
safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Daphne High School Band (DHS Band) has requested that the 
City appropriate funds for the DHS Band’s use for the benefit, either directly or 
indirectly, of the residents of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Board, by and through organizations like 
the DHS Band, to promote discipline while representing the City of Daphne and serving 
as the City’s good will ambassadors while representing the City in various competitions, 
performances, and school functions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City proposes to make a $ 35,000 (thirty-five thousand dollar) 
payment to the Board, and in return the Board shall appropriate the same $ 35,000 
(thirty-five thousand dollars) to Daphne High School which shall be restricted for use 
only by the DHS Band; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is further agreed and understood that the funds received and 
allocated to the DHS Band through the City of Daphne’s annual Taste of Eastern Shore 
Event shall be withheld by the City until such time as $ 25,000 (twenty-five thousand 
dollars) is collected and “paid back” to the City.  (Total annual amount to be withheld not 
to exceed $ 5,000.) 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it 
is mutually agreed by and between the City and the Board as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Authority 
 
 The Board represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to receive 
funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article IV, Section 94, 
or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or any other 

180



 2 

constitutional or statutory provision, provided however that the Board makes no 
representation or warranty regarding the propriety of the subject funding as a municipal 
expenditure. 
 
The Board further warrants that funding from the City shall be used in accordance 
herewith and for no other purpose. 
 
SECTION 2. Services 
 
 The Board shall direct the DHS Band to promote discipline while representing the 
City of Daphne and serving as Daphne’s good will ambassadors by representing the 
City in various competitions, performances and school functions, which shall be a public 
service to the City and its citizens.  If the Board provides public services both inside and 
outside the Corporate Limits of the City, then, if requested by the City or its 
representative, it shall provide appropriate documentation demonstrating that the 
funding provided for herein was used within the Corporate Limits of the City. 
  
SECTION 3.  Agreement of City to Provide Funds 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Board in the following amount for the 2013 
fiscal year: $ 35,000 (Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars) with $ 25,000 (Twenty-Five 
Thousand Dollars) to be withheld by the City from future allocations to the DHS Band 
through the City’s annual Taste of Eastern Shore Event.   (Total annual amount to be 
withheld not to exceed $ 5,000.) The Finance Director of the City or his/her designee 
shall be the representative of the City for the administration and implementation of the 
provisions hereof on behalf of the City. 
 
SECTION 4.  Separate Agreements 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Board except to the extent set out 
expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a separate valid 
written agreement between the City and Board, then this Cooperation Agreement is 
supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the terms of the latest written 
agreement shall prevail. 
 
SECTION 5.  Term, Termination 
 
 This Agreement shall take effect upon the date hereof and shall not be 
terminated by either party until the obligations set forth in Sections 2 and 3 herein are 
performed in full. 
 
SECTION 6.  Non-Discrimination and Compliance 
 
 The Board hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its responsibilities 
and obligations hereunder, the Board, its officers, agents and employees will not, on the 
grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or disability, discriminate or permit 
discrimination against any person or group of persons, in any manner.  The Board 
further agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal ordinances and 

181



 3 

regulations, including but not limited to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  The Board further agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said coordinator 
will be responsible for ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for services and 
programs as to the Board's state of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
SECTION 7.  Audit 
 
 The City may require appropriate documentation from the Board to document the 
disbursement and use of the funding provided herein.  The City may have the Board 
records provided in accordance herewith audited by an independent CPA firm. 
 
SECTION 8.  Severability 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that in 
the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to be invalid by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both parties to be invalid, 
the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision herein contained, shall not 
affect other remaining and valid covenants or conditions herein unless such invalidity 
renders performance of the essential elements of the contract impossible. 
 
SECTION 9.  Final Integration 
 
 This Agreement together with any amendments, constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties, as a complete and final integration thereof with respect to its subject matter.  In 
the event of a direct conflict between the provisions hereof and any prior agreement or 
amendment, the latter shall supersede the former.  All written or oral understandings 
and agreements heretofore had between and among the parties are merged into this 
Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their understandings.  No 
representation, warranty or covenant made by any party which is not contained in this 
Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied on by any party in entering 
into this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 10.  Force Majeure 
 
Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party responsible for damages or 
delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other party's employees, agents or 
contractors. 
 
SECTION 11.  Amendment in Writing 
 
This Agreement may not be amended, modified, altered, changed, terminated or waived 
in any respect whatsoever, except by a further agreement in writing, properly executed 
by all of the parties. 
 
 

182



 4 

 
 
SECTION 12.  Captions 
 
The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, are not a part 
of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the scope or intent of 
this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 13.  Mandatory and Permissive 
 
 "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, "may" is permissive. 
 
SECTION 14.  Governing Laws 
 
The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the validity of this Agreement, the 
construction of its terms, the interpretation of the rights, the duties of the parties, the 
enforcement of its terms, and all other matters relating to this Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and date first set forth above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ____________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________  
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 

BALDWIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, an 
Agency of the State of Alabama 

 
     BY:__________________________________ 
 
     TITLE: Superintendent and Ex-officio Secretary 
 
     Federal ID#__________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 
 
 

183



 5 

 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
COUNTY OF BALDWIN 
 
 I, ______________________, a Notary Public, in and for said County in said 
State, hereby certify that ______________________ and ____________________ , 
whose names as Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, an Alabama 
municipal corporation, are signed to the foregoing instrument and who are known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the 
instrument, they in their capacities as such officers and with full authority, executed the 
same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 
 
 Given under my hand and seal this ______ day of ____________, 2013. 
 
 
  _________________________________________________ 
   Notary Public 
   My Commission Expires:________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
COUNTY OF BALDWIN 
 
 I, ______________________, a Notary Public, in and for said County in said 
State, hereby certify that ________________________ whose name as Superintendent 
and Ex Officio Secretary of the Baldwin County Board of Education, an Agency of the 
State of Alabama, is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the 
instrument, he in his capacity as such and with full authority, executed the same 
voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 
 
 Given under my hand and seal this ______ day of ____________, 2013. 
 
 
  _________________________________________________ 
   Notary Public 
   My Commission Expires:________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

184



 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 18, 2013 
 
Baldwin County Board of Education 
Jean McCutchen, Director of Business & Finance 
2600-A North Hand Avenue 
Bay Minette, AL 36507 
 
  RE:  Agreement: Daphne High School Band 
 
Dear Ms. McCutchen: 
 
During the June 17, 2013, Daphne City Council meeting the City Council appropriated 
 $ 35,000 to the Daphne High School Band.  Of this amount, $ 25,000 will be withheld 
from future collections allocated to the DHS Band from the City’s annual Taste of 
Eastern Shore Event.  (total annual withholdings not to exceed $ 5,000)  To that effect, 
enclosed are three copies of the Cooperation Agreement.  Please have each 
Agreement executed and notarized.  Then, return them to me.  Upon execution of the 
Agreement by the Mayor and City Clerk, a copy of the Agreement and payment 
according to the contract terms will be forwarded to you. 
 
Thank you for your assistance and should you need to contact me, I can be reached at 
625-2000. 
 
For the City of Daphne, 
 
 
Kimberly Briley, Finance Director 

185



ORDINANCE 2013-34 
 

2012 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG)  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has applied and been awarded a grant through the 
Fiscal Year 2012 Assistance to Firefighters Grant program to receive funding to assist 
with the purchase of a complete set of turnout gear for each firefighter to include coat, 
pants, rubber boots, gloves, and  hood; and 
 
WHEREAS, this personal protective equipment is critical to each fireman’s safety and 
will also be used when providing mutual aid response to any requesting department 
county wide.  
 
WHEREAS, the total Grant award is $83,250, (Federal share (90%)- $74,925  & City’s 

match (10%) - $8,325); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a General Fund 
appropriation for  $8,325 the required match for the AFG Grant and the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute any and all documents relative to this grant project. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne this _____ 
day of _________________, 2013.    
 
   
                                                                       
    

_________________________________ 
                                                                  Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  
 

186



Ordinance 2013-35 
 

Fiscal 2013 Amended Budget: 
New Personnel and Personnel Restructuring  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, Ordinance 2013-
25 amending the Fiscal 2013 budget was adopted by the City Council and certain 
personnel amendments were funded; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need to increase the total personnel in the Court, Police, Public 
Works, and Recreation Departments and to restructure existing personnel in the Library 
and Fire Departments; and 
 
WHEREAS, such new personnel and personnel restructuring have been evaluated by the 
Mayor and deemed necessary.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
   

A)  The following new positions are hereby created and the total authorized 
positions in the requisite departments is hereby increased as follows: 

 
(1) Magistrate- Municipal Court 
(2) Patrol Officers- Police 
(1) Part-Time- Grounds 
(1) Part-Time- Recreation 

 
B) The following positions are hereby restructured with no increase in total 

authorized positions: 
(1) Library Svcs Tech Grade 8 to Library Computer Svcs Tech  

Grade 14 
(1) Part-Time Library Aide from Grade 6 to Library Technician Grade 8 
(3) Firefighters from Grade PF 20 to Fire Lieutenants Grade PF 22 

 
The Library Services Technician, Part-Time Library Aide, and 3 Firefighter 
positions shall no longer be funded, filled, or authorized until such time as the 
City Council determines necessary.  

 
Such new positions and restructuring shall be effective with the pay period beginning 
July 11, 2013.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2013. 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

187



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-36 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE SAFETY OF BICYCLISTS 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that the 

safety of bicyclists is important; and 

 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that the 

following ordinance is in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the 

citizens of the City of Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

a) The driver of a motor vehicle overtaking and passing a bicyclist that is proceeding 

in the same direction shall pass the bicyclist at a safe distance between the motor vehicle 

and the bicyclist of not less than three (3) feet and shall maintain such clearance until 

safely past the overtaken bicyclist. 

 

b) The driver of a motor vehicle that passes a bicyclist proceeding in the same 

direction may not make a right turn at any intersection or into any roadway or driveway 

unless the turn can be made with reasonable safety. 

 

c) A violation of this section shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars 

($50.00) nor more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or in the alternative, may be 

sentenced to community service as the municipal judge may deem appropriate. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA this ________, day of ______________, 2013. 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

188


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes
	Backup to Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Proclamation - Kim Briley
	PUBLIC HEARING INFO COUNCIL PACKET
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Public Works Committee Meeting Notes
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Minutes
	Public Hearing Set Date Info
	Report of Officers
	ABC License - Benedettos
	Mayors Report Ecumenical Ministries
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-34 - RES - Truck- Knuckleboom Loader-2013
	2013-35 - RES - Pine Straw-Negotiated-2013
	2013-27 - ORD - ANNEXATION - RETREAT AT TIAWASEE 
	bACKUP TO 2013-27
	Backup to 2013-27 II
	2013-32 - ORD - Williams Property purchase-no restoration $ -final
	2013-33 - ORD - DHS Band 2013 Bd of Ed Ordinance
	Backup to 2013-33 - DHS Band 2013
	2013-34 - ORD - FD-AFG-Assistance to Firefighters Grant-2013
	2013-35 - ORD - Restructure Library and Fire
	2013-36 - ORD - Traffic Ordinance - Bicycle(3)



